In Attendance

**Presiding Member**: Paula Davies

### Members:

Peter Brass	Independent Member
Councillor John Kemp	Council Member
Councillor Malcolm Herrmann	Council Member

### In Attendance:

Peter Bice	Acting Chief Executive Officer	
Terry Crackett	Director Corporate Services	
Mike Carey	Manager Financial Services	
Lachlan Miller	Executive Manager Governance & Performance	
	Minute Taker	
Tim Muhlhausler	Galpins Accountants, Auditors and Business	
	Consultants	
Juliano Freitas	Galpins Accountants, Auditors and Business	
	Consultants	

Details of External Auditors were added as per resolution from the Audit Committee meeting Confirmation of Minutes of 5 November 2018.

### 1. COMMENCEMENT

The meeting commenced at 6.06pm

### 2. APOLOGIES/LEAVE OF ABSENCE

### 2.1. Apology

**Geoff Purdie** 

### 2.2. Leave of Absence

Nil

2.3. Absent

Nil

- 3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
- 3.1. Audit Committee Meeting 13 August 2018

Moved Peter Brass S/- Cr Malcolm Herrmann

AC18/18

That the minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on 13 August 2018 as distributed, be confirmed as an accurate record of the proceedings of that meeting.

Carried

4. Delegation of Authority

In accordance with the Audit Committee Terms of Reference, the Committee has no delegated decision-making powers. The Recommendations in Item 6.1 are to be submitted to Council for adoption.

5. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Nil

- 6. OFFICER REPORTS DECISION ITEMS
- 6.1. 2017-18 Draft General Purpose Financial Statements

Moved Peter Brass S/- Cr John Kemp AC19/40

The Audit Committee resolves:

- 1. That the report be received and noted.
- To recommend that Council endorse the early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards AASB15 and AASB1058 for the 2017-18 financial year and pursuant to AASB1058 elect not to recognise Volunteer Services in its financial statements for the 2017-18 financial year.

3.	That in accordance with Section 126(4)(a) of the Local Government (Financial
	Management) Regulations 1999, the Audit Committee advises Council that it has
	reviewed:

- a. the General Purpose Financial Statements of the Council for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 as contained in Appendix 1, and
- b. the draft External Auditor Galpins' Audit Clearance Letter, and is satisfied that they present fairly the state of affairs of the Council.
- 4. Considers that the Adelaide Hills Council 2017-18 General Purpose Financial Statements, contained in Appendix 1, can be certified by the Chief Executive Officer and the Mayor.
- 5. That it notes the confirmation of Galpins Independence Declaration Statement as tabled and considers that the Auditor Independence Statement contained in Appendix 2 can be certified by the Chief Executive Officer and the Presiding Member of the Audit Committee in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

		Carried
6.2.	Action Report & Work Plan Update	
	Moved Peter Brass	AC20/18
	S/- Cr Malcolm Herrmann	
	That the Audit Committee resolves that the report be received and noted.	
		Carried

7. Next Meeting

The next ordinary meeting of the Audit Committee will be held at 6.00pm on Monday 5 November 2018, at 63 Mount Barker Road, Stirling.

8. Close Meeting

The meeting closed at 7.32pm.

### Galpins

Accountants, Auditors & Business Consultants

David Chant CA. FCPA Simon Smith CA. FCPA David Sullivan CA, CPA Jason Seidel ca Renae Nicholson ca Tim Muhlhausler ca Aaron Coonan ca Luke Williams CA, CPA Daniel Moon ca



### Mount Gambier

PO Box 246, Mount Gambier SA 5290 P: 1081 8725 3048 F: [08] 8724 9553 E: admin@galpins.com.au

Stirling Unit 4, 3-5 Mount Barker Road P: [08] 8339 1255 F. [08] 8339 1266 E. stirling@galpins.com.au

### Norwood

3 Kensington Road, Norwood SA 5067 P: [08] 8332 3433 F- [08] 8332 3466 E norwood@galpins.com.au

W: www.galpins.com.au

Bill Spragg Mayor Adelaide Hills Council PO Box 44 Woodside SA 5244

His Worship the Mayor of Adelaide Hills Council, Mr Bill Spragg

### Re: Adelaide Hills Council - Financial Statements Audit - 2017/18

We have recently completed our audit of the internal controls of the Adelaide Hills Council and we intend to issue an unmodified report for the internal controls opinion.

The audit of the financial report is in the process of being competed. At the date of this letter we are not aware of any matter that would require qualification in our audit report on the financial report. We received a draft financial report on 4 October 2018 and have still to complete the following audit procedures:

- · completing our audit procedures in relation to Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment; and
- completing our review of the draft financial report.

Australian Auditing Standards require us to advise all the Immaterial Uncorrected Misstatements found during the audit. There were no Immaterial Uncorrected Misstatements found.

I confirm also my intention to sign the Statement by Auditor regarding my independence, and confirm that for the audit of the year ended 30 June 2018 I have maintained my independence in accordance with the requirements of APES 110 - Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, Section 290, published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

Yours faithfully,

### GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

Tim Muhlhausler CA Registered Company Auditor

8 October 2018

### DRAFT INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE INTERNAL CONTROLS

### To the Members of the Adelaide Hills Council

### Independent Assurance report on the Internal Controls of the Adelaide Hills Council

### Opinion

We have audited the compliance of the Adelaide Hills Council (the Council) with the requirements of Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation only to the Internal Controls established by the Council to ensure that financial transactions relating to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018 have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

In our opinion, the Adelaide Hills Council has complied, in all material respects, with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation to Internal Controls established by the Council in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the Council have been conducted properly and in accordance with law for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018

### **Basis for Opinion**

We conducted our engagement in accordance with applicable Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3100 Compliance Engagements, issued by the Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, in order to state whether, in all material respects, the Council has complied with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation only to the Internal Controls specified above for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018. ASAE 3100 also requires us to comply with the relevant ethical requirements of the Australian professional accounting bodies.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

### The Council's Responsibility for Internal controls

The Council is responsible for implementing and maintaining an adequate system of internal controls, in accordance with Section 125 of the *Local Government Act 1999* to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property, and incurring of liabilities have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

### Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other relevant ethical requirements relating to assurance engagements, and apply Auditing Standard ASQC 1 Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Reports and Other Financial Information, and Other Assurance Engagements in undertaking this assurance engagement.

### Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Council's compliance with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation only to the Internal Controls established by the Council to ensure that financial transactions relating to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities, based on our procedures. Our engagement has been conducted in accordance with applicable Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3100 Compliance Engagements, issued by the Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, in order to state whether, in all material respects, the Council has complied with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation only to the Internal Controls specified above for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018. ASAE 3100 also requires us to comply with the relevant ethical requirements of the Australian professional accounting bodies.

Our procedures included obtaining an understanding of controls in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities, evaluating management's assessment of these controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and implementation of controls on a sample basis based on the assessed risks.

### **Limitations of Controls**

Because of the inherent limitations of any internal control structure it is possible that, even if the controls are suitably designed and operating effectively, the control objectives may not be achieved so that fraud, error, or non-compliance with laws and regulations may occur and not be detected.

An assurance engagement on controls is not designed to detect all instances of controls operating ineffectively as it is not performed continuously throughout the period and the tests performed are on a sample basis. Any projection of the outcome of the evaluation of controls to future periods is subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with them may deteriorate.

### Limitation of Use

This report has been prepared for the members of the Council in Accordance with Section 129 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation to the Internal Controls Specified above. We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report to any persons or users other than the members of the Council, or for any purpose other than which it was prepared

### GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

Tim Muhlhausler CA, Registered Company Auditor Partner

//

### DRAFT INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL REPORT

### To the members of the Adelaide Hills Council

### Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report of the Adelaide Hills Council (the Council), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the Council Certificate of the Adelaide Hills Council.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of the Council as at 30 June 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, Local Government Act 1999 and Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

### **Basis for Opinion**

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the *Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report* section of our report. We are independent of the Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 *Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants* (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

### Council's Responsibility for the Financial Report

Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations), the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and for such internal control as Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, Council is responsible for assessing the Council's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Council either intends to liquidate the Council or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Council's financial reporting process.

### Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit of the financial report in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error,
  design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
  appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
  fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
  misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the financial report in order to design audit
  procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
  effectiveness of the Council's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of Council's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
  audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
  significant doubt on the Council's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
  uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
  financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
  audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
  the Council to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and
  whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
  presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

### GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

**Tim Muhlhausler** CA Registered Company Auditor Partner

//

DRAFT STATEMENT BY AUDITOR				
I confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of Adelaide Hills Council for year ended 30 June 2018, I have maintained my independence in accordance with the requirements of APES 110 – Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, Section 290, published by the Accounting Professionals and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.				
This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011				
Tim Muhlhausler Galpins				
Dated this day of 2018.				